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1.   Revised Appendix E-R2 (RFP Booklet – Section VII) 

2.   Revised Price Proposal Sheet (Book 1, Section 1.02, Pages 59-R through 63A) 

3.   Revised Progress Payment Schedule (Book 2: Volume 2, Pages 1543-R1 through 1550-R1) 
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THE CITY OF NEW YORK 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

DIVISION OF BRIDGES 
 
 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 
  
 

P.I.N. 84106SIBR096 
CONTRACT No. HBR1217 

 
 

Design, Construction and Construction Support Services 
For the Rehabilitation of 

The St. George Staten Island Ferry Terminal Ramps 
Borough of Staten Island 

BIN’s: 2270180, 2269770, 2269780, 2269730, 2269740, 2269750, 2269790, 2270170, 2269760 
 
 

ADDENDUM # 4 
December 21, 2007 

 
 
 
REFER TO: REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS, Section VII-ATTACHMENTS, APPENDIX E-R1 – 

PRICE PROPOSAL SHEET, as amended in Addendum # 2. 
 
REPLACE: APPENDIX E-R1 – PRICE PROPOSAL SHEET in its entirety with APPENDIX E-

R2 – PRICE PROPOSAL SHEET. 
 
REFER TO:  Book 1 of the RFP, PRICE PROPOSAL SHEET, Pages 59 through 63-R1, as partially 

amended in Addendum # 2. 
 
REPLACE: Pages 59 through 63R1 in their entirety with Pages 59R through 63A. 
 
REFER TO:  Book 2 of the RFP, EXHIBIT C – PROGRESS PAYMENT SCHEDULE, Pages 1543 

through 1550. 
 
REPLACE: Pages 1543 through 1550 in their entirety with Pages 1543R1 through 1550R1. 
 
REFER TO:  Book 2 of the RFP, EXHIBIT E, SECTION 4, PRELIMINARY QUANTITIES – 

SUMMARY TABLE, Page 1666 
 
REPLACE: Page 1666 in its entirety with Page 1666-R. 
 
REFER TO:  Book 2 of the RFP, EXHIBIT H, PROVISION NO. 61, PROTECTIVE SHIELD, Page 

1758, Item No. 13, reading: “13.   The protective shield shall be capable of supporting…” 
 
CHANGE TO: To read: “13a.  The protective shield shall be capable of supporting…” 
 



REFER TO:  Book 2 of the RFP, EXHIBIT H, PROVISION NO. 61, PROTECTIVE SHIELD, Page 
1758 

 
ADD: New paragraph between Item 13a (as amended in this Addendum No. 4) and Item 

14 to read: “13b.  For protective shield spanning over the railroad’s right-of-way, 
see Protective Shield Standards, Book 2: Volume 2, Exhibit G, Section 2, pages 
1710a, 1710b and 1710c.  If the requirements for protective shield in Exhibit G are 
in conflict with the requirements specified in Exhibit H, Provision No. 61 or any 
part of the RFP, the Company shall comply with the most stringent requirements.” 

 
REFER TO:  Book 2 of the RFP, EXHIBIT G, RAILROAD REQUIREMENTS, SECTION 2, 

PROCEDURES FOR WORKING ON SIRTOA’S ROW 
 
INSERT: Attached Protective Shield Standards, pages 1710a, 1710b and 1710c at the end of 

Section 2 of Exhibit G. 
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Following are answers to questions for the above named contract, which were submitted in writing to the 
agency. 
 
Q1: Page 3, in Section II.C states, “…the Department will consider proposals to structure payments in a 

different manner and reserves the right to select any payment structure that is in the City’s best interest.”  
Is the Authority planning on changing the lump sum items to unit price, or another method of 
measurement and payment?  When will the Authority determine the measurement and payment method 
for this contract? 

 
A1: NYC DOT has no intention to change the payment structure at this time.  The above provision is 

intended to allow proposers to propose a different payment structure in the event they believe the 
existing one does not serve the City well; it will then be the proposer’s obligation to persuade the 
City of the benefits arising from a different payment structure. 

 
Q2: The Level 1 and 2 Bridge Rating chart, on specification page 1533, summarizes the results of the 

biennial bridge inspection plan.  As stated, seven of the nine bridges on the project have been load rated, 
and of those structures, only the North Ramp is non-compliant with the HS-20 rating.  But it is the 
design team’s responsibility to verify that the ratings levels still satisfy HS-20 loading.  How do we bid? 

 
A2: Exhibit B - Technical Specifications in Book 2: Volume 2 (Page 1533) states that “it is the 

Company’s responsibility to verify that the rating levels still satisfy HS-20 Loading in their 
rehabilitated condition”.  In other words, if there is no change in the dead load from its existing 
condition to its rehabilitated condition, there would be no need to perform load ratings.  If there is 
a change in the loading condition (e.g. the addition of barriers, sidewalks, etc.), only those member 
impacted by these additional loads would have to be re-rated. 

 
It is not anticipated that every member on every structure would require load ratings.   

 
Q3: Contract documents call out an area for job trailers under the south station ramps. Additionally lay-down 

area will be required for contractor materials to be stored on site. Please provide details on the size, 
location and accessibility of these areas. 

 
A3: Storage containers and equipment may be stored adjacent to the construction trailers.  Other 

areas may also be available in the North Municipal Lot.  During the execution of the contract, the 
Company shall arrange to meet with the entities having jurisdiction over the additional areas that 
may be available to work out the details of such areas, that is, size, location, access, etc.  No areas, 
other than those specified in the RFP, shall be used without written authorization from the entities 
having jurisdiction over them. 

 
Q4: Please provide any cad files that exist of the jobsite. These will be required for us to develop a functional 

MPT and staging plan. 
 
A4: All the CAD files were provided in Addendum No. 2. 
 
Q5: Do the top flanges of existing steel members, which will be exposed during deck removal, contain lead 

paint?  
 
A5: Typically, steel that is to be in contact with concrete is not painted; but if the steel was originally 

primed in the shop during fabrication, then there may be a coat of red lead paint.  Since the top 
flange was not accessible for sampling during the lead paint survey, it is not possible to state with 
any certainty whether lead is present or not.  For bidding purposes, proposers are to assume that 



lead paint is present on the top flanges and will need to be removed as part of the surface 
preparation procedures described in A6 below.  

  
Q6: What are the surface preparation requirements for existing steel members which will be in contact with 

newly placed deck concrete? 
 
A6: Given the age and condition of the bridges in this project, it is likely that the top flanges, once 

exposed, will exhibit a thick layer of rust.  This layer of rust, regardless of whether it contains lead 
paint or not, must be removed prior to installing / replacing shear connectors and pouring the new 
concrete deck.  Proposers are to assume that the required cleaning methods will be abrasive 
blasting meeting the SSPC Standards for SP 10 – Near White Blast Cleaning.  Unless a rigorous 
sampling and testing program is undertaken at each bridge to prove that lead paint is not present, 
the proposers shall assume that abrasive blast cleaning of the top surface of the flanges (e.g. 
flanges to be in contact with the new deck) must be performed inside a Class 1A Containment 
System. 
 
Once the top surface has been cleaned to a near white blast, a thin layer of zinc paint shall be 
applied to preserve the surface from rusting during formwork and installation of shear studs. 

  
Q7: In Exhibit G of Book 2: Volume 2 Spec., paragraph 2.1 on p. 17 (or p. 1706) states that train access to 

the station is limited to two tracks that enter the Interlocking via a tunnel and that the D/B Co. will not 
be granted track closures for both of these tracks at the same time. For each track closure in the tunnel 
please provide all the Track No.’s and Platform No.’s within the Interlocking that will be available to the 
Contactor to enter upon and perform work for a  6 hour (day & night) and for a 55 hour Diversion.  

 
A7: When Track 1 is taking out of service in the tunnel, Tracks 1 through 5 within the Station, and 

Platforms 1 and 2 and half of Platform 3 (adjacent to Track 5) will be available to the Contractor.  
Similarly, when Track 2 is taking out of service in the tunnel, Tracks 6 through 10 within the 
Station, and Platforms 4 and 5 and half of Platform 3 (adjacent to Track 6) will be available to the 
Contractor. 

  
Q8: In Exhibit G of Book 2: Volume 2 Spec. paragraph 1.2.10 e. on p. 14 (or p. 1703) lists the Number of 

Occasions for a 6 hour and a 55 hour Diversion. Does one Diversion count as one of the two existing 
tracks taken out of service within the Tunnel or is it the sum of all the tracks within the Interlock taken 
out of service due to closing one of the two existing tracks in the Tunnel?  

 
A8: One diversion counts as the sum of all tracks within the Interlock taken out of service due to a 

single track outage in the tunnel. 
  
Q9: During a 6 hour and a 55 hour Diversion how much time is required by TA forces for initial set-up 

before the Contractor can enter on to the tracks? How much time should the Contractor allow at the end 
of each Diversion so that TA forces have sufficient time to reactivate the tracks?  

 
A9: Initial set-up takes 15 minutes and tracks activation will be done after the Contractor clears the 

tracks.  The Contractor must clear up the tracks no later than the end of the permissible hours of 
work specified in Exhibit G. 

 
Q10: Once a protective shield system is installed over the Railroad, meeting the criteria of paragraph 61 on 

pages 1756-1758 in Exhibit H of Book 2: Volume 2, is work allowed above the shield which spans 
across the Railroad without a Track Diversion 24 hours a day 7 days a week?  

 



A10: Provided the protective shielding meets the criteria of Special Provision 61 in Exhibit H of Book 2: 
Volume 2 and does not infringe on the clearance limits given in Section 2.11 of Exhibit G in Book 
2: Volume 2 (Page 1708 and 1709) and worker / equipment access to the shielding is not via 
SIRTOA ROW, then work hours will not be restricted.  However, if the work being performed 
above the shielding includes picking equipment and/or material over tracks/platforms (e.g. lifting 
beams in and out, removing large portions of slabs, etc), then track diversions and flaggers will be 
required.  Work of this nature must be performed within the permissible hours stated in Section 
1.2.4 of Exhibit G in Book 2: Volume 2 (Page 1695 and 1696). 

 
Q11: How will Contractor access be provided to all of the existing train platforms from within the Ferry 

Terminal Building? Are there any restrictive hours? If so, what are they?  
 
A11: Access from within the terminal building to the train platforms will be provided to the Contractor 

only via the service booth and during Authority approved work hours specified in Exhibit G, 
Book 2: Volume 2. 

  
Q12: How will Contractor worker, vehicles and equipment access be provided into the Interlock area?  
 
A12: The Contractor must use the North Municipal Lot gate marked as “Gate 5” to bring vehicles and 

equipment into the Interlock area.  For Contractor workers, access will be provided via the 
service booth.  See A11 above. 

  
Q13: Criteria No. 3 of the Traffic Stipulations, in Exhibit F of Book 2: Volume 2 on p. 1687, requires 24 hour 

access to four bus ramp lanes. Is this 24 hour access required Monday through Friday? Monday through 
Sunday?  Please clarify.  

 
A13: This traffic stipulation is in effect 24 hours a day 7 days a week.  

  
Q14: From the RFP we have not been able to determine the minimum vertical railroad clearance for the 

proposed North Ramp.  Please provide the minimum vertical railroad clearance for the proposed North 
Ramp. 

 
A14: The minimum vertical clearance is 16’-6” measured from the top of rail. 
  
Q15: Engineering Requirement Item 14 p. 1540 Pigeon Deterrent System:  The electrified  Pigeon Deterrent 

System has a potential of becoming an extremely expensive item for the Project.  The RFP notes the 
system be installed in areas over “pedestrian walkways, parking lots, station platforms and train storage 
areas”.  As one may construe any area where a train is parked to be a “train storage area” this could 
entail a significant area on the project.  In addition, in as much as the superstructure beams are at skew 
angles with the tracks, if a “pedestrian walkway” is adjacent to a track the system would have to be 
installed along the beam on both sides until the beam is beyond the walkway.  If the beam spans more 
than one track with each having an adjacent walkway, the system could be dis-continuous but the 
electrical wiring would still have to extend thru the un-needed area.  As a result, the basic cost is still 
applicable.  This work will most likely have to be done under GO outages with Local 3 Electricians, a 
gruesome and extremely expensive task.  Can the limits of the Pigeon Deterrent system be better 
defined.  In addition, would alternative non-electrical systems be considered. 

 
A15: The Preliminary Quantities Estimate given in Section 4 of Exhibit E in Book 2: Volume 2 gives the 

SF area of where the pigeon deterrent system is required.   Attached to this Addendum No. 4 is a 
plan view of the project site depicting the areas requiring the pigeon deterrent system.  Only an 
electrified wire pigeon deterrent system will be acceptable to the NYC DOT. 

  



Q16: Special Provision Item 62, p. 1758 provides NYCDOT requirements for protective shielding:  100 psf 
live loading over entire surface plus a concentrated live loading of 2000 lbs.  Will this loading be 
sufficient to meet railroad approval? 

 
A16: Refer to the additional requirements provided in this Addendum No. 4 for protective shielding 

when over the railroad’s right-of-way. 
 

Q17: Can we be provided a copy of the Agreement (or Draft) the NYCDOT has with the SIR/ Transit 
Authority. 

 
A17: DOT-Legal Affairs is currently negotiating an agreement with the MTA.  If an agreement is 

reached prior to the Price Proposal due date for this RFP, we will then provide a copy of the 
agreement. 

  
Q18: Can we obtain the following excel spreadsheets that are included in RFP documents? (.pdf files 

furnished by NYCDOT are NOT excel): 
- Preliminary Quantities file;   
- Progress Payment Schedule file; 
- Preliminary quantities for Lead removal & painting; 
- Price Proposal Sheet 

 
A18: NYC DOT does not provide Excel spreadsheets.  It is the Company’s responsibility to create its 

own spreadsheets. 
  
Q19: Page 1666: “Preliminary Quantities – Summary Table” lists Item 1g: “Concrete Removal – 

Substructure” with zero quantity. 
Was there intended to be any substructure concrete removal? 
 

A19: Yes – there is substructure concrete removal associated with the demolition of the existing North 
Ramp. The quantity is shown in the Preliminary Quantity Estimate for the North Ramp on Page 
1682 but was inadvertently left off the Summary Table.  Page 1666 has been revised and is 
attached to this addendum # 4. 

  
Q20: Page 1666: “Preliminary Quantities – Summary Table” lists Item 2a: “Steel Removal – Beams” with 

745,000 LF as the quantity. 
Is the unit of measurement correct on this item? 
 

A20: The correct unit of measurement should be lbs as shown on the Preliminary Quantity Estimate 
Table for the North Ramp on Page 1682.  Page 1666 has been revised and is attached to this 
addendum # 4. 

 
Q21: Refer to the RFP page 6 which states, “The proposal package should consist of individually sealed 

components as listed in Section IV-B, Proposal Package Contents (‘Checklist’), each bound in an 8 ½” x 
11” plastic spiral binding.”  There are a number of different types of plastic spiral binders available.  The 
type we selected is a hard plastic, locking style spiral binder, distributed by GBC, part number GBC 25-
145-17 ProClick.  Can we use this type for our proposal? 

 
A21: NYC DOT has no objection to the use of this specific spiral binding type for this proposal. 
 



THE CITY OF NEW YORK 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

DIVISION OF BRIDGES 
 

N.Y.C. P.I.N.       84106SIBR096 
CONTRACT No. HBR1217 

 
 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 
 

 FOR 
 

DESIGN, CONSTRUCTION AND CONSTRUCTION SUPPORT SERVICES 
FOR THE REHABILITATION OF 

THE ST. GEORGE STATEN ISLAND FERRY TERMINAL RAMPS 
BOROUGH OF STATEN ISLAND 

CONTRACT No. HBR1217 
P.I.N. 84106SIBR096 

 
 

 
 

TOGETHER WITH ALL WORK INCIDENTAL THERETO 
 
 
 
 

I,____________________________________________________ 
(NAME AND TITLE) 

 
_____________________________________________________ 

a duly authorized representative of 
(NAME OF PROPOSERS) 

 
 

acknowledge receipt of Addendum No. 4 dated December 21, 2007 for the Contract No. HBR1217 for which 
Technical Proposals will be received by 2:00 PM on January 23, 2008. 

 
 
 


